
         
Agenda Item No. 8c. 

 
Staff Report 

 

Date:  October 12, 2023 
 
To:  Mayor Brekhus and Council Members 

 
From:  Richard Simonitch, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Contract Amendment #6 for Consor Engineering in the amount of $52,442.59 for 

additional consulting services required for the Winship Avenue Bridge 
Replacement Project 

 
Recommendation 
It is recommended that Town Council authorize the Town Manager to execute Contract 
Amendment #6 with Consor (formerly Quincy) Engineering in the amount of $52,442.59 for costs 
associated with additional tasks related to the completion of a “Structure Type Selection Report” 
for the Winship Bridge replacement project.  
 
Background and Discussion 
The design for the replacement of the existing Winship Avenue bridge (the Project) is currently 
in the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) certification phase, which commenced following 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) certification of the Project in August 2020. 
Before commencing with final engineering and construction of the bridge, the Federal Highway 
Bridge Program (HBP), which is the primary funding source for the Project, requires clearance 
(i.e. approval) of all NEPA and Right of Way (ROW) tasks. Caltrans recommends that a “Structure 
Type Selection Report” (TSR) be reviewed and approved prior to NEPA clearance. The TSR is a 
comprehensive report that combines all of the technical structural issues (i.e., structure type, 
foundation type, hydraulics, bridge length, span configuration, vertical profile, etc.) of the 
proposed bridge project into a single report. The objective of Caltrans’ review of the TSR is to 
ensure that the most cost-effective solution is being considered and that the preferred 
alternative for the Winship Bridge replacement has justification for HBP eligibility. 
 
The tasks and cost associated with preparing a TSR were included in the original 2014 contract 
scope of work and are 85% complete based on the TSR report standards at that time. Since 2014, 
Caltrans has expanded and provided greater clarification of the submittal requirements for the 
TSR. In 2022, Caltrans issued an updated checklist detailing these report requirements. 
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Amendment #6 will cover the costs of these expanded submittal requirements for the TSR for 
the Project. 
 
Project Timeline: 
On February 13, 2014, the Town of Ross awarded a Professional Design Engineering Contract to 
Quincy (now Consor) Engineering in the amount of $655,673 for 100% Plans, Specifications, and 
Estimates and NEPA certification. 
 
On January 6, 2015, the Marin County Flood Control and Water Conservation District (the County) 
entered into an agreement with the Town to reimburse 100% of the Town’s costs for CEQA. These 
reimbursement amounts were $18,735 (increased to $54,459 in 2021). 
 
On March 9, 2017, the Town Council approved a contract amendment for Quincy Engineering for 
$79,273, increasing the contract amount to $734,946 to cover additional costs outside of their 
original contract scope. Most of these additional costs were related to preparing responses and 
technical reports in response to input and requests received from staff, Town Council and the 
public between February 2014 and March 2017.   
 
On May 11, 2017, the Town Council approved a proposed alignment and directed staff and the 
bridge consultants to complete the environmental studies based on the preferred alignment and 
width.  
 
On January 3, 2020, the Draft Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration was completed and 
subsequently adopted by Town Council on March 12, 2020.  The CEQA Notice of Determination 
was filed on March 13, 2020. Because of the COVID 19 pandemic, the statute of limitations for 
court challenges extended from 30 days to 147 days; and Quincy could not begin NEPA processing 
until August 7, 2020.  
 
On October 14, 2021, the Town Council approved another contract amendment for Quincy (now 
Consor)Engineering for $122,000, increasing the contract amount to $856,946 to cover additional 
costs outside of their original contract scope including $60,000 for pending right of way 
easements and acquisitions, and $62,000 for additional reports related to revised hydraulic 
conditions related to the San Anselmo Building Bridge 2 removal, Natural Environment Study and 
Biological Assessment, Cultural Resource, and floodplain studies.   
 
Amendment #6 proposes a $52,443 contract amendment which will increase the contract from 
$856,946 to $909,389. 
 
Fiscal, resource and timeline impacts 
The contract expiration date has been extended from December 31, 2016 to December 31, 2024 
under four separate actions, which date should coincide with the completion of NEPA and right 
of way clearance. No further contract amendments are anticipated for NEPA clearance, however 
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additional contract amendments or a new Consultant Services Agreement will be required to 
secure final engineering and construction management services once NEPA and right of way are 
cleared. 
 
The funding source for all of these costs is the federal HBP program. Local match funding will be 
provided by State toll credits for an anticipated 100%  grant funding.  No Town Operating Fund 
or General Funds are needed for this contract amendment.  On January 22, 2022, the Town 
Council authorized the appropriation of $160,000 from the Town’s drainage fund account to pay 
consultant invoices until HBP funding is obligated, at which time the drainage fund will be 
reimbursed with HBP funding. Staff believes that future HBP funding obligations will be adequate 
and that no further appropriations from the drainage fund will be required to complete the 
project. 
 
Completion of NEPA and ROW will improve the project ranking, accelerating the timing on HBP 
funding obligations to the Town. 
 
Alternative actions  
none  

 
Attachments 
Amendment #6 
Original 2014 Consultant Contract 






































































































































